
1 
 

MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION  

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 1998 
 
 

PRESENT: Walter L. Alcorn, Commissioner At-Large  
 John R. Byers, Mount Vernon District  

Carl A. S. Coan, Jr., Providence District  
Judith W. Downer, Dranesville District  
Janet R. Hall, Mason District  
Suzanne F. Harsel, Braddock District  
John W. Hunter, Commissioner At-Large  
John B. Kelso, Lee District  
Ronald W. Koch, Sully District  
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District  
John M. Palatiello, Hunter Mill District  
Alvin L. Thomas, Commissioner At-Large 

 
ABSENT: None 
 
// 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:20 p.m. by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, Jr., in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center at 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
// 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS
 
Commissioner Koch, citing unresolved issues, MOVED THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING ON 
SEA-82-S-081 AND PCA-82-S-032, SOUTHERN STATES COOPERATIVE, INC., BE 
DEFERRED FROM OCTOBER 21, 1998 TO OCTOBER 29, 1998. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Coan and Thomas not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Koch MOVED THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING ON RZ-1998-SU-025 AND 
FDP-1998-SU-025, CENTEX HOMES, BE DEFERRED FROM OCTOBER 21, 1998 TO 
DECEMBER 9, 1998. 
 
 
 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS         October 21, 1998 



2 
 

 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Coan 
and Alcorn not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Palatiello MOVED THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING ON RZ-1998-HM-020 
AND FDP-1998-HM-020, COSCAN BROOKFIELD HOMES, BE DEFERRED FROM 
OCTOBER 21, 1998 TO DECEMBER 9, 1998. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Coan 
and Alcorn not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Murphy MOVED THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING ON SE-98-S-024, 
TRUSTEES OF KNOLLWOOD BAPTIST CHURCH D/B/A KNOLLWOOD COMMUNITY 
CHURCH, BE DEFERRED FROM OCTOBER 21, 1998 TO DECEMBER 9, 1998. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Coan 
and Alcorn not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Murphy MOVED THAT THE DECISION ONLY ON FDPA-85-S-064-2-1, 
TRUSTEES OF CHRIST UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, BE FURTHER DEFERRED TO 
A DATE CERTAIN OF NOVEMBER 18, 1998. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Coan 
and Alcorn not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Murphy announced that John Wesley White had been appointed as the new Director 
of Public Works and Environmental Services, effective November 16, 1998, and welcomed him 
to the County. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Byers announced that the Revitalization Committee would hold its initial meeting 
on November 11, 1998 at 7:30 p.m. in the Board Conference Room and noted that the public was 
invited. 
 
// 
COMMISSION MATTERS         October 21, 1998 
 



3 
 

 
SE-98-L-019 - SEARS, ROEBUCK & CO., A NEW YORK. CORPORATION, D/B/A NTB
(The public hearing on this application was held on July 23, 1998.  A complete verbatim 
transcript of the decision made is included in the date file.) 
 
Commissioner Kelso MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THAT SE-98-L-019, SEARS AND ROEBUCK 
COMPANY, D/B/A NTB, BE APPROVED, SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
CONDITIONS DATED OCTOBER 20, 1998. 
 
Commissioners Koch and Byers seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Palatiello abstaining; Commissioners Coan and Thomas not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
FS-P98-19 - WinStar, 7799 Ramada Road
 
Commissioner Coan MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION FIND THAT FS-P98-
19, WHICH IS A TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY PROPOSED BY WINSTAR 
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. FOR 7799 LEESBURG PIKE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
BUILDING LOCATED AT 7799 RAMADA ROAD, IS IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED A "FEATURE SHOWN", PURSUANT TO SECTION 15.2-2232 OF THE 
CODE OF VIRGINIA, AND THAT AS PART OF THAT APPLICATION, THE LETTER 
FROM THE APPLICANT'S ATTORNEY, JAMES R. MICHAL, COMMITTING TO 
SCREENING THIS FACILITY AND PURSUANT TO SUCH STANDARDS AS ARE 
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY COUNTY STAFF THAT WE SHOULD GO FORWARD 
WITH THIS. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 7-0-1 with Commissioner 
Kelso abstaining; Commissioners Downer, Harsel, Koch and Thomas not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
ORDER OF THE AGENDA  
 
(Note: Although Mrs. Harsel was present, Chairman Murphy set the agenda.)  Chairman Murphy 
established the following order for the agenda: 
 

1. SE-98-P-030 - APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC. 
2. RZ-1997-PR-055 - COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC.  
 FDP-1997-PR-055 - COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC. 

 
 
ORDER OF THE AGENDA         October 21, 1998 
 
 



4 
 

This order was accepted without objection. 
 
// 
 

SE-98-P-030 - APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC. - Appl. under Sect. 
3-204 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit a private school of general 
education and child care center with a maximum daily enrollment 
greater than 100 students on property located at 9655 and 9657 Blake 
Ln. on approximately 1.53 acres zoned R-2.  Tax Map 48-3 (11902 & 
3.  PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.  PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Gregory Riegle, Esquire, with McGuire, Woods, Battle and Boothe, reaffirmed the affidavit 
dated October 15, 1998.  There were no disclosures by Commission members. 
 
Peter Kortright, Zoning Evaluation Division (ZED), Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ), 
presented the staff report, a copy of which is in the date file.  He noted that staff recommended 
approval of the application. 
 
Mr. Riegle stated that Appletree School had been founded about twenty years ago by Peter and 
Wilhelmina Klaassen, who were still very active in the operation of the school and who resided 
on the application property.  He said the school was governed by a special permit which had 
been approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals approximately 15 years ago.  He noted that the 
school was operated by the Sunrise Assisted Living Foundation of which Paul Klaassen, son of 
Peter and Wilhelmina Klaassen, was the Chief Executive Officer.  He said the purpose of the 
application was simply to expand the existing building and to modestly increase enrollment, and 
that there were no plans to develop anything beyond the scope of the application.  He explained 
that an expansion would provide an indoor recreation space where children could play during 
inclement weather and which would accommodate students, parents and teachers for school 
functions.  He said an expansion would also have the added benefit of reducing outside 
playground noise which had been an issue with neighbors.  Mr. Riegle said that conditions 
proposed by staff would regulate tree preservation, transitional screening, stormwater 
management and peak hour traffic restrictions.  He explained that despite repeated offers, 
neighbors had been unwilling to meet with the applicant in an effort to address unresolved 
issues. He said in its 20 year history the school had had only four instances of enforcement 
actions taken by the County relative to old development conditions. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Coan, Mr. Riegle said the four complaints were 
about transitional screening, unauthorized evening activities, a sign and a fence in need of repair. 
Mr. Riegle noted that in each instance the school has responded promptly to address the 
violations. 
 
In conclusion, Mr. Riegle said that the school was willing to meet with neighbors or any other 
concerned individuals to work toward reasonable solutions to any issues they might have. 
SE-98-P-030 - APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC.      October 21, 1998 
 
 
Chairman Murphy called the first listed speaker and recited the rules for testimony before the 



5 
 

Commission. 
 
Vicky Rasnic, 8539 Aponi Road, Vienna, representing the Parent Teacher Organization of 
Appletree, spoke in favor of the application and said that the school needed an area large enough 
to accommodate parents and children for special events. 
 
Peter Montanino, 2920 Gray Street, Oakton, spoke in favor of the application and said that the 
school was an asset to the community. 
 
Lieutenant Colonel Renona Etter-Trotter, 2949 Miller Heights Road, Oakton, expressed support 
for the proposed expansion of Appletree School and said it provided its students with an 
excellent educational foundation and prepared them to become productive adults. 
 
Peter Young, 9712 Five Oaks Road, Fairfax, representing L & M Community Association 
located directly across Blake Lane from Appletree School, stated that he did not oppose the 
expansion application, but did have concerns about traffic on Blake Lane going to and from the 
school and the possibility of further expansion of the school. 
 
Addressing Mr. Young's concern, Chairman Murphy said that the applicant's attorney had made 
it clear that there were no plans to expand beyond the scope of the present application, and that if 
they wished to do so; it would have to go through the public hearing process. 
 
Rene Szabo, 9718 Water Oak Drive, Fairfax, stated he lived directly behind the application 
property and was concerned about playground noise which existed from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  
He also expressed concern about the lack of landscaping and dead trees not being replaced. 
 
Mr. Szabo responded to questions from Commissioners Hall and Palatiello about the hours of 
operation and landscaping. 
 
William Moffitt, 9722 Water Oak Drive, Fairfax, expressed opposition to the application, citing 
traffic concerns. 
 
Commissioner Coan and Mr. Moffitt discussed a fence along the rear of the school. 
 
Michele Moffitt, 9722 Water Oak Drive, Fairfax, said that she was concerned about the type of 
screening to be provided by the applicant and the maintenance of existing and future trees. 
 
In response to a question by Commissioner Coan, Ms. Moffitt said she had not discussed her 
concerns with the applicant. 
 
Paul Hoshall, 9716 Water Oak Drive, Fairfax, referring to an "Abutters Report" dated October 
16, 1998, which had been prepared by property owners immediately abutting the proposed  
SE-98-P-030 - APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC.      October 21, 1998 
 
 
development, spoke in opposition to the application, citing concerns about traffic hours of 
operation and screening.  He said that if approval were recommended, the neighbors would sit 



6 
 

down with the applicant in an effort to resolve outstanding issues.  (A copy of the Abutters 
Report is in the date file.) 
 
Mr. Hoshall responded to questions from Commissioner Hall about the petition which he had 
submitted.  (A copy of the petition is in the date file.) 
 
Mr. Hoshall responded to questions from Commissioner Coan about why the community had not 
attempted to resolve their issues with the applicant. 
 
Continuing his remarks, Mr. Hoshall noted that a corporation owned the school and adjacent 
vacant property, and expressed concerns about further expansion. 
 
Mr. Hoshall responded to questions from Chairman Murphy about his position. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn asked Mr. Hoshall if the proposed development conditions contained in 
the Abutters Report had been discussed with County staff.  Mr. Hoshall responded that some of 
the conditions had been discussed in general with County staff. 
 
Commissioner Palatiello noted for the record that of the surrounding property owners, 38 
opposed the expansion of the school and 33 did not sign the petition. 
 
David Tenny, 3639 Paoli Court, Chantilly, expressed support for the application and extolled the 
virtues of Appletree School. 
 
Commissioner Hall reminded Mr. Tenny that the Commission would make its decision based 
upon land use issues associated with this application, not on the quality of education the school 
provided. 
 
Jean Hoshall, 9716 Water Oak Drive, Fairfax, said she had prepared the petition and noted that 
six of the seven immediately abutting property owners had signed it.  She said that the 
community had not met with the applicant because of inaccuracies contained in the site plan and 
in the application. 
 
Ms. Hoshall responded to questions from Commissioner Downer about the size of trees required 
by the development conditions contained in the Abutters Report, and evening and weekend 
activities. 
 
Ms. Hoshall responded to questions from Commissioner Byers about after hours activities and 
Kristen Abrahamson, ZED, DPZ, responded to questions from him about landscaping 
maintenance. 
 
SE-98-P-030 - APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC.      October 21, 1998 
 
 
Boyce Fitzpatrick, owner of property at 9653 Blake Lane, Fairfax, expressed opposition to the 
application based on the lack of parking and the fact that the school was located in a residential 
area. 



7 
 

 
Mr. Fitzpatrick responded to questions from Commissioner Hall about his position. 
 
Ms. Abrahamson responded to questions from Commissioner Palatiello about Zoning Ordinance 
requirements for the operation of a public versus a private school.  She also responded to 
questions from Commissioner Downer about enforcing the limits on after hours school activities. 
 
There being no further speakers, Chairman Murphy called upon Mr. Riegle for a rebuttal 
statement. 
 
Mr. Riegle submitted for the record a petition and letters in support of the subject application.  
(A copy of the petition and the letters are in the date file.)  He noted that everyone who would be 
responsible for enforcing development conditions was in the audience tonight, and that they were 
fully aware of the importance of enforcing them. 
 
Commissioner Coan and Mr. Riegle discussed the enforcement of development conditions.  
Commissioner Palatiello suggested that the conditions be posted in a conspicuous place at the 
school. 
 
Continuing with his rebuttal, Mr. Riegle said that the school had committed to hiring a 
landscaping contractor, who with a representative of the Urban Forester and interested citizens, 
would plan the number and type of trees to be planted.  He said he was hopeful that the planting 
could be completed by the time the application was scheduled to go before the Board of 
Supervisors, if approval was recommended by the Planning Commission.  He also assured the 
Commission that a fence would be installed that would be acceptable to all parties concerned. 
 
Chairman Murphy asked all the supporters for this application who were in the audience, but 
who were kind enough not to testify, to please stand and be recognized.  (Approximately 40 
people stood up.) 
 
Commissioner Hall suggested that a neighborhood/school liaison group be established to address 
any issues which might arise. 
 
Mr. Riegle responded to questions from Commissioner Harsel about the number of teachers, 
staff and students, hours of operation, size of the outdoor play area, the placement of the 
dumpster and the number of parking spaces. 
 
 
 
 
SE-98-P-030 - APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC.      October 21, 1998 
 
 
There being no further comments or questions and no closing staff comments, Chairman Murphy 
closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Coan for action of this application.  (A 
verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 



8 
 

// 
 
Commissioner Coan MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE 
DECISION ONLY IN SE-98-P-030, APPLETREE OF FAIRFAX, INC., FOR AN INDEFINITE 
PERIOD. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
// 
 

RZ-1997-PR-055 - COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC. - Appl. to rezone 
from R-1 & HC to PDH-3 & HC to permit residential development at 
a density of 2.36 dwelling units per acre and approval of the 
conceptual development plan on property located S. of the 1-66 and 
Leesburg Pike interchange on approx. 11.84 acres.  Comp. Plan Rec: 
2-3 du/ac. Tax Map 40-3((1 ))75.  (Concurrent w/FDP-1997-PR-055.) 
 PROVIDENCE DISTRICT. 
 
FDP-1997-PR-055 - COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC. - Appl. to 
approve the final development plan for RZ-1997-PR-055 to permit 
residential development on property located S. of the 1-66 & Leesburg 
Pike interchange on approx. 11.84 acres zoned PDH-3 & HC.  Tax 
Map 40-3((1))175.  (Concurrent w/RZ-1997-PR-055.)  
PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.  JOINT PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Martin D. Walsh, Esquire, with Walsh, Colucci, Stackhouse, Emrich and Lubeley, PC, 
reaffirmed the affidavit dated October 20, 1998.  There were no disclosures by Commission 
members. 
 
Gregory Russ, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning, presented the 
staff report, a copy of which is in the date file.  He noted that staff recommended approval of the 
applications. 
 
Mr. Russ responded to questions from Commissioner Coan about fire and rescue service and 
water service for the proposed development and also about the applicant's tree preservation plan. 
 
Commissioners Coan and Byers and Mr. Russ discussed the adequacy of water service in the 
area. 
 



9 
 

RZ-1997-PR-055 AND FDP-1997-PR-055 -         October 21, 1998 
COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC. 
 
 
Mr. Walsh said the applicant was the contract purchaser of the subject property which had been 
owned by the Edwards family for the past 128 years.  He said the applicant sought to rezone the 
property from R-1 to PDH-3 to permit the development of 28 single-family detached units which 
equated to 2.36 dwelling units per acre.  He explained that the historic house on the property was 
in serious disrepair and that a preservation architect had estimated the cost to renovate it at about 
one million dollars.  He said the house would be offered for sale for a period not to exceed 18 
months to a qualified purchaser for preservation of the property.  He said the applicant had met 
with surrounding property owners in an effort to address their concerns.  Mr. Walsh explained 
that the applicant had asked for a waiver of the 200 foot setback from I-66 and that a noise study 
concluded that only the second story of the proposed units would need noise attenuation. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Coan, Mr. Walsh said that he would be willing to 
look at additional noise mitigation measures. 
 
Continuing his presentation, Mr. Walsh explained that there were three alternatives to loop the 
water line in its current configuration and extend it and that he had been assured by engineers 
that this would not exacerbate water pressure problems.  He said that the applicant would route 
sewer lines to several adjacent lots with aging septic systems so that they could tap into the 
public sewer system.  Mr. Walsh noted that revised proffers dated October 14, 1998 were in 
direct response to concerns voiced by the community about screening and sewer lines. 
 
Commissioner Coan questioned the wisdom of installing a four way stop sign at Gordons Road 
and Dale Drive. 
 
Chairman Murphy called the first listed speaker. 
 
Ernest Holzmann, 2333 Barbour Road, Falls Church, said he was not opposed to development of 
the subject property, but expressed concerns about the proposed density, a four-way stop sign at 
Gordons Road and Dale Drive, public safety vehicle access to the area, proposed buffering, noise 
and water service. 
 
Michael Lynch, 7313 Gordons Road, Falls Church, referred to a memorandum to the Planning 
Commission dated October 8, 1998 signed by 65 residents of Falls Hall, in which concerns were 
expressed about tree preservation, buffering, road improvements and noise.  (A copy of this 
memorandum is in the date file.) 
 
Haywood Stocks, 7312 Gordons Road, Falls Church, said he welcomed development, but that 
Gordons Road needed to be improved with shoulders and curbs in order to accommodate 
additional traffic.  He referred to a document he had prepared supporting his position.  (A copy 
of this document is in the date file.)  He said that the Dunn Loring Fire and Rescue Department 
would respond first to emergencies in this area, followed by the City of Falls Church. 
 
RZ-1997-PR-055 AND FDP-1997-PR-055 -         October 21, 1998 



10 
 

COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC. 
 
 
Mr. Stocks responded to questions from Commissioner Coan about improvements he thought 
should be made to Gordons Road. 
 
Commissioner Coan and Mr. Russ discussed the possibility of the Virginia Department of 
Transportation (VDOT) making improvements to Gordons Road.  Mr. Russ said that he had 
contacted Ms. Angela Rodeheaver of the Fairfax County Department of Transportation (DOT) 
about this matter and expected to hear from her soon. 
 
Mr. Stocks responded to questions from Commissioner Byers about this position. 
 
Susan Robinette, 7305 Gordons Road, Falls Church, expressed concern about noise and air 
pollution and said that a loss of trees would exacerbate these problems.  Therefore, she said she 
was opposed to a waiver of the 200 foot setback requirement.  Additionally, she said she thought 
the developer should have the responsibility for construction of a noise wall, not the County. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Coan, Ms. Robinette said that if the existing noise 
wall was continued, the setback requirement could be reduced. 
 
Valerrus Kost, 7309 Gordons Road, Falls Church, said he was not opposed to the proposed 
development, but was concerned about Gordons Road handling additional traffic.  He suggested 
that an alternative means of access be considered. 
 
Matthew Thexton, 7219 Gordons Road, Falls Church, expressed concerns about noise 
mitigation, water pressure, tree preservation and the intersection of Gordons Road and Dale 
Drive.  He suggested that townhouses might make better use of the property. 
 
Mr. Thexton responded to Commissioner Coan about his position. 
 
John Lang, 7307 Gordons Road, Falls Church, stated that he was in favor of the proposed 
development if road improvements were made to support additional traffic. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Coan, Mr. Lang said a townhouse development 
would address the problems of noise and tree preservation, but not the inadequacy of area roads. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Hall, Ms. Abrahamson said that 18 months was a 
reasonable length of time to try to market the historic home located on the application property.  
Commissioner Hall said she was very concerned about the possible loss of this house.  
Commissioner Hunter suggested that it might be suitable for the establishment of a bed and 
breakfast. 
 
There being no further speakers or questions or comments, Chairman Murphy called upon Mr. 
Walsh for a rebuttal statement. 
RZ-1997-PR-055 AND FDP-1997-PR-055 -         October 21, 1998 
COSCAN WASHINGTON, INC. 



11 
 

 
 
Addressing Commissioner Hall's concern about the historic house, Mr. Walsh said that the 
condition of the house was such that renovation would be very difficult and that he thought there 
was a very real possibility that a buyer would not be able to be found. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Coan, Mr. Walsh said the Proffer Number 9 which 
addressed the existing house, would be revised in order to allow for an adequate length of time 
for completion of renovation, if a buyer was found. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Coan, Mr. Walsh said that the VDOT had rejected 
their proposal to construct a road parallel to Route 7 which would provide access to Dale Drive.  
Mr. Walsh said, however, that he would revisit this possibility in consultation with Ms. 
Rodeheaver. 
 
Mr. Walsh responded to a question from Commissioner Downer about the costs associated with 
the sale of the existing house found in Proffer Number 9. 
 
There being no further comments or questions and no closing staff comments, Chairman Murphy 
closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Coan for action on these applications.  
(A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Coan MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE 
DECISION ONLY IN RZ-1997-PR-055 AND FDP-1997-PR-055, COSCAN WASHINGTON, 
INC., WITH THE RECORD REMAINING OPEN FOR WRITTEN COMMENT, TO A DATE 
CERTAIN OF NOVEMBER 12, 1998. 
 
Commissioners Byers and Hall seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioner Thomas not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:16 p.m.  
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman  
Suzanne F. Harsel, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CLOSING                                                                                                        October 21, 1998 
 
 



Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
 

Minutes by: Linda B. Gibson 
 
Approved on:  March 9, 2000 
 
 

 
Mary A. Pascoe, Clerk to the 
Fairfax County Planning Commission 

 

12 
 


